UNITED
NATIONS E

Economic and Social Distr.
. GENERAL
Council

E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
29 November 1999

ENGLI SH
Original: FRENCH

COW TTEE ON ECONOM C, SOCI AL AND CULTURAL RI GHTS
Twenty-first session
SUMMARY RECORD OF THE 31st MEETI NG

Hel d at the Palais des Nations, Geneva,
on Tuesday, 16 November 1999, at 3 p.m

Chai rperson: M's. BONOAN- DANDAN

CONTENTS
CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS:

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES
16 AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

- Third periodic report of Bulgaria (continued)

This record is subject to correction.

Corrections should be submtted in one of the working | anguages. They
shoul d be set forth in a nmenorandum and al so i ncorporated in a copy of the
record. They should be sent within one week of the date of this docunent to the
O ficial Records Editing Section, roomE. 4108, Pal ais des Nations, Geneva.

Any corrections to the records of the nmeetings of the Committee at this
session will be consolidated in a single corrigendum to be issued shortly after
the end of the session

GE. 99- 45745 ( EXT)



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 2

The neeting was called to order at 3.10 p.m

CONSI DERATI ON OF REPORTS

(a) REPORTS SUBM TTED BY STATES PARTI ES | N ACCORDANCE W TH ARTI CLES
16 AND 17 OF THE COVENANT (conti nued)

- Third periodic report of Bulgaria (continued)
(E/ 1994/ 104/ Add. 16; HRI/CORE/ 1/ Add. 81; E/C. 12/ A/ BUL/1; E/ C 12/ Q BUL/ 1;
written replies of the Bul garian Government (docunment w thout a symbol))

1. The Chairperson invited the menmbers of the Bul garian del egation to resune
their places at the Commttee table and to reply to the questions put at the end
of the preceding nmeeting on articles 6, 7, 8 and 9 of the Covenant.

2. M. DRAGANQV (Bulgaria) said that, under article 5, paragraph 4, of the
Bul gari an Constitution, international instrunments which had been ratified,

promul gated and published in the Oficial journal became an integral part of
domestic | aw and took precedence over national |egislation. Furthernore, the
Bul gari an Government's witten replies contained some exanples of cases in which
t he provisions of the Covenant had been invoked before the courts while there
were not many such cases, the public was becom ng increasingly aware of its
right to invoke the Covenant directly, particularly through the work of NGOs.
Awar eness rai sing was al so taking place anmong nenbers of the | egal profession

A special training centre for judges had been set up in 1997.

3. M. RIEDEL said that he would |i ke sonme details of the actual

i npl enmentation of the provisions of the Covenant and asked whet her persons

i nvoki ng the Covenant had received judgenents in their favour and whether the
deci si ons handed down had been regarded as form ng case | aw.

4, Ms. JIMENEZ BUTRAGUENO wel cormed the establishnment of a training centre
for judges and asked the del egation for nore information about it.

5. Ms. SREDKOVA (Bulgaria) said that the judgenents handed down on the basis
of the Covenant, the first of which dated back to 1993, had been enacted. The
smal | nunber of such judgements was expl ai nable by a | ack of know edge about

i nternational instruments, which was why a new subject entitled "Internationa

| abour and social |aw' was now being taught at the Sofia Faculty of Law. In
1996 and 1997, a two-year post-graduate training course had been organi zed for
the staff of the I abour inspectorate. |In that field, Bulgaria was al so working

on a draft anendnment of the Labour Code based on the Covenant and to providing
mechani sm for settling disputes between enployers and workers. The specia
training centre for judges had so far organized two training sessions on the
protection of human rights and its two main objectives were specialized training
for newly appointed judges (during their first three years in office) and the
training of judges at all |evels.

6. M. DRAGANQV (Bulgaria), referring to M. Riedel's question on the draft
Optional Protocol, said that he had contacted his Government to obtaining its
nmost recent thinking on Bulgaria's reservations to the draft Optional Protocol
He hoped to be able to give the Conmittee the results of his inquiry at the next
meet 1 ng.




E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 3

7. On the question of social welfare, he said that he could not give precise
statistics for the nunmber of Roma who benefitted because all owances were paid on
the basis of socio-economc, not ethnic, criteria. Frominformation collected
during national censuses, the inpression was that the Roma popul ation
constituted the | argest group of beneficiaries of social assistance, which in
full suggested that the view of the Cormittee on the Elimnation of Racia

Di scrimnation that the Roma faced difficulties in receiving their socia

assi stance was incorrect. Further explanations in that connection would be
found in paragraph 4.4 of the witten replies. There was no question of
interruption, but only delay in, the paynent of |ocal comunity assistance

8. As to the institutions responsible for protecting human rights, he drew
attention to paragraph 4.7 of the witten replies and, in particular, to the
establishnment of a special working group on Roma issues. As in all countries,
such institutions were in need of support. Accordingly, work was being done on
special training for their staff. Studies had also been carried out to
determine the advisability of setting up an onbudsman type of structure in

Bul garia. Refugee status was granted by the Agency for Refugees, a body that
had mnisterial rank. According to the regulations in force, persons requesting
asylumin Bulgaria could be detained at the airport for 24 hours before being
sent to a transit centre. There were also energency centres, where, in specia
cases, refugees status could be granted in 72 hours. Turning to the question of
education for nomads, he said that, as far as the authorities knew, there were
practically no nonmads in Bulgarian territory. There was only one community of
about 200 itinerant herdsnen on the G eek frontier, and the education of
children of that community did not give rise to problens.

9. Ms. SREDKOVA (Bulgaria) said that women had the same access to education
as nmen and were well represented in the educational systemat all |evels,

i ncl udi ng hi gher education. However, they were nore affected by unenpl oyment.
The National Enploynment Agency had not devised specific progranmes for wonen,
but they could obviously benefit fromthe various existing progranmes for people
indifficulty. For exanmple, since 1994, the Agency had been running a literary
and vocational training progranmre for people of mxed ethnic origin, young
persons and wormen. Also since 1994, there had been a programme entitled "From
social care to enploynent”, which was intended for di sadvantaged groups such as
very | ow i ncone people or single nothers and from which sone 4,500 persons had
benefited in 1997. A national programe had al so been established to deal with
yout h unenpl oyment, under which young nmen and wonen coul d receive vocationa
training or advice on choosing a career or setting up a small business.

10. The 1997 Unenpl oynent Protection and Enpl oynent Pronmption Act provided
financi al inducenents for enployers to hire the di sadvantaged, in particul ar
young peopl e under 28, the handi capped and the |ong-term unenpl oyed. So far
t hose neasures had found jobs for 3,781 people.

11. Wth regard to protection for nothers, she drew attention to paragraphs
136 to 144 of the third periodic report, adding that the Labour Code contai ned
provi si ons whereby an enpl oyer could provide vocational training for a woman
returning frommaternity leave, with a view to bringing her skills up to date
and restoring her to her previous job. Parental |eave could be taken by either
the nother or the father - although cases where the father did so were
relatively rare or even by one of the grandparents - which was the npst usua
case. Turning to discrimnation in the workplace, she denied the allegation



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 4

that a | arge nunber of Roma were victins of dismissal. Not only the Roma, but
all Bulgarians were affected by the difficult enploynment situation, attributable
to the national restructuring process and the structural changes taking place in
enterprises. The Roma were particularly exposed to the risk of dismssal not
because of their ethnic origin, but sinply because of their low level of skills
and educati on.

12. Di scrimnation at work, on whatever grounds, was prohibited in Bulgaria.
According to the Labour Inspectorate, there had been sone cases of indirect

di scrimnation, based, inter alia, on ethnic origin or sex, but enmployers found
guilty of that type of abuse had been duly penalized by the Labour Inspectorate.

13. The right to strike was guaranteed by article 50 of the Bul garian
Constitution and was the prerogative not of trade unions, but of workers, who
took their decision by sinple majority. W rkers and enployees in certain
sectors, such as health, the production, distribution and supply of electricity
and the system of justice, were not entitled to go on strike. Certain articles
of the Labour Code had been anended with a view to encouraging the use of neans
other than striking - such as direct negotiations between the parties, mnediation
and arbitration - to settle collective | abour conflicts. The National Agency
for Enmpl oynent Medi ation had been set up in 1998 for that purpose.

14. Only one institution was conpetent to decide whether a strike was
political or not: the district court. According to the |law, any strike was

| awf ul unl ess ot herwi se deci ded by the conpetent court. The enpl oyer,
non-stri king enpl oyees and the State could dispute the | awful ness of a strike.
The district court then took up the matter and was required to hand down a
decision in open court within 14 days of the start of the proceedings. 1In
practice, some strikes had been found unlawful, but many nore decisions had
recogni zed their | awful ness.

15. In reply to M. Wner's question, she said that article 12 of the

Bul garian Constitution provided, inter alia, that citizens' associations,

i ncludi ng trade unions, nmust not pursue political objectives or conduct any
activities connected with political parties. By political activity, the

| egi sl ator had neant any activity connected wi th organi zing and conducti ng
el ecti ons.

16. In reply to the questions of several nenbers of the Committee about the
m ni mum wage, she referred to paragraphs 45 et seq. of the third periodic report
of Bul garia, where the relevant mechani smwas described in detail. She rem nded

the Conmittee that the mninumwage was fixed during tripartite bargaining

i nvolving representatives of the State, enployers and the npst representative
trade unions. It was true that the m ni num wage was very |low in Bulgaria, but
the country's economic situation made it inpossible to raise it for the tinme
bei ng. The m ni rum wage was, however, two or three tinmes higher in sone
econom ¢ sectors such as banking and electricity.

17. The unenpl oynent benefit systemwas contributory. Any enployee who had
wor ked for 6 out of the past 15 nonths was entitled to a benefit equivalent to
80 per cent of the salary earned during the period of work, but not |ess than
90 per cent of the mninmumwage. The length of entitlenment varied according to
| ength of service, from4 nonths for those with | ess than 10 years' service to
one year for those with nore than 20 years' service. Three additional groups -



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 5

part tinme workers, people on training or rehabilitation courses and unenpl oyed
peopl e who had been seeking work for over one year - were entitled to six nonths
of benefit; recipients then had to wait a further year before they could claim
agai n.

18. There were two reasons for the significant rise in the nunber of

unenpl oyment benefit claimants over the past few years. Firstly, until 1997,
unenpl oyed graduates of higher or secondary educational institutions had al so
been entitled to claimunenpl oyment benefits, but that was no | onger the case.
Secondly, the nunber of |ong-term unenployed had risen, while the nunber of
avai l abl e jobs had fallen steadily.

19. M. GRISSA noted that the head of the Bul garian del egati on had deni ed the
exi stence of any discrimnation in Bulgaria, while recognizing that certain
State services classified certain people according to ethnic origin. Experience
had shown that, as soon as officials were permtted to classify people according
to ethnic or linguistic origin, discrimnation became possible. Mny countries
had therefore stopped draw ng distinctions on the basis of race, colour, ethnic
origin or religious background.

20. He al so wondered how the Bul garian authorities could state, both in their
written report and in their presentation, that there was a national m ni mum wage
if no single mnimm wage exi sted.

21. M. HUNT noted that no reply had yet been received to the question whet her
Bul gari a genuinely had a national institution responsible for pronoting and
def endi ng human rights, in the sense of a national conm ssion set up in

conpliance with the "Paris Principles". Bulgaria did not yet appear to have an
institution of that kind. |In that case, perhaps it could envisage establishing
such a structure and making it responsible for ensuring that econom c, socia
and cultural rights were respected. In that connection, the del egation's

attention should be drawn to the fact that the O fice of the Hi gh Conmm ssioner
for Human Ri ghts had a very el aborate programe precisely for the purpose of
hel ping States wi shing to create such institutions.

22. M. TEXIER said that, in his view, the delegation's replies to the
guestions about refugees were quite full, but enphasized that the Ofice of the
United Nations High Comm ssioner for Refugees remai ned uneasy about the
procedure followed by Bulgaria in that regard. Any asylum seeker should be able
to be heard by a conpetent service, which should consider the application on the
basis of specific facts, not of prejudices about the seriousness or otherw se of
the situation in the asylum seeker's country of origin. There should be an
appeal s procedure for rejected applications.

23. In connection with article 8 of the Covenant concerning freedom of

associ ation, the Bul garian del egati on had recogni zed that articles 11 and 16 of
the Law on the Settlenment of Collective Labour Disputes limted the right to
strike. Cearly, there remi ned sone contradictions between those articles and
their interpretation by the I1LO Cormittee on the Application of Standards. The
del egati on had menti oned the Bulgarian Supreme Court's ruling that those
[imtations on the rights to strike were constitutional. However, Bulgaria had
ratified the 1LO Freedom of Association and Protection of the R ght to O ganize
Convention, 1948 (No.87), which normally took precedence over donestic

| egi sl ati on.



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 6

24, He al so noted that the del egation had said that certain unenpl oyed people
recei ved unenpl oynent benefits for six nmonths of their first year of

unenpl oynent and then had to wait one year before they were able to draw

unenpl oyment benefits again. What happened during that year? Wat did they
live on in the neantinme? WAs there really a mnimmincone established for

t hose whose inconme was | ower than the m nimum set by | aw?

25. M. ANTANOVI CH said that the purpose of the m ni mum wage was to provide
the worker and his famly with a decent living. That was why the m ni num wage
represented a inportant human rights instrunment. |If the m ni num wage was too
low to guarantee a decent living, it ceased to be a human rights instrument and
became a sinple econom c indicator. The delegation had said that sonme private
enterprises could pay up to twi ce the national m ninum wage, but perhaps even
that was not enough. Could it be said in that case that, in the present

ci rcunstances, the Bulgarian State was not in a position to guarantee a
sufficient mninmmwage to provide its citizens with a decent |iving?

26. M. THAPALI A said that, according to informati on published recently in the
International Herald Tribune, many peopl e aged over 30 were unenpl oyed in

Bul gari a because all job offers were directed at those aged under 30. Could
peopl e over 30 apply to a court on the grounds of violation of the right to

wor k? Were training progranmes envisaged for those over 307

27. Ms. JI MENEZ BUTRAGUENO noted that social assistance and vocationa

i ntegration programes did not appear to be provided for elderly people in

Bul garia. What did they live on? Did they at |east receive social assistance?
She woul d al so i ke an answer to her question about the training of judges.

28. M. SADI asked what percentage of the national budget was spent on socia
assi stance and wel fare benefits and whether or not that State assistance was a
priority for the Bulgarian authorities.

29. Ms. SREDKOVA (Bulgaria) said that there was a national m ninmum wage in
force throughout Bulgaria, but that the social partners in each econonic sector
had the option of setting a m ni rum wage hi gher than the national one.

30. Bul garia did not yet have a national institution responsible for human
rights. The Government woul d take due account of the Committee's
recomendations in that regard.

31. Regarding the right to strike, the Bul garian Constitutional Court had
ruled that there was no contradiction between the provisions of articles 11 and
16 of the Law on the Settlement of Collective Labour disputes and those of the
ILO Right to Organize and Col | ective Bargai ni ng Convention, No. 98. That
convention did not specify how decisions concerning the organization of a strike
were to be taken. However, during the debate on the anendnent of the law in
guestion, trade unions right to propose the reduction or elimnation of the
restrictions on the right to strike laid down by that |aw for certain sectors.

32. Unenpl oyed peopl e who had used up their entitlenent could receive
assistance if they fulfilled the conditions |aid down by the |aw on socia
assi stance, particularly as concerned i ncome and savi ngs.



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 7

33. It had to be recogni zed that the m ni mum wage coul d not guarantee an
adequate standard of living. Unfortunately, it was not possible to raise it, as
that woul d endanger the transition towards a market econony.

34. Discrimnation in hiring workers, particularly on the basis of age,
occurred in isolated cases. The victinms needed to be encouraged to apply to the
Labour Inspectorate or the courts and rem nded that those procedures were free
of charge

35. The CHAI RPERSON invited the Bul garian delegation to refer to the
i npl enentation of articles 10, 11 and 12 of the Covenant.

36. M. DRAGANOV (Bulgaria) said, in population censuses, every individual was
totally free to choose which category he wi shed to be classified in, such as
"Roma" or "of Bulgarian origin”

37. The right to social insurance and wel fare was guaranteed by article 51 of
the Constitution. The social insurance system had been in the process of being
over haul ed for several years in order, inter alia, to extend protection. A new
nati onal health insurance systemwas being inplenmented gradually. The new
institutions had tripartite managenent. Various |laws had been passed on socia
i nsurance, health insurance, unenploynment protection and safety at work and a
code on conpul sory social insurance had been approved on first reading in the
Nati onal Assenbly.

38. Concerning the protection of children, nothers and the famly, the
Nat i onal Assenbly had adopted a draft act on the protection of children on first
readi ng and a new draft of the Fam |y Code was being drawn up

39. The right to an adequate standard of living was currently the npst
difficult requirement to inplenent because of the country's econom c
difficulties. The right to health insurance and nedi cal care was guaranteed by
article 52 of the Constitution. Free public health services were gradually
bei ng replaced by a new system of contributory health insurance, which was
expected to be fully operational by the end of 2001. The probl ens encountered
in inmplementing the new system were described in detail in the report and the
written replies.

40. | mportant events which had occurred since the witten replies had been
subm tted included the adoption of the | aw on conbatti ng drug abuse and the | aw
on nedi cal institutions, the finalization of the work plan for the prevention of
H V and AIDS and the inplenentation of the first stage of the joint Mnistry of
Heal t h/ UNDP progranmme on H V and Al DS

41. M. HUNT said that he would |like details of |egislative and ot her neasures
taken by the Governnment to prevent and conbat viol ence agai nst wonen.

42. M. ANTANOVICH noted fromthe witten replies (para. 26.3(a)(ii)) that the
maxi mum stay in an orphanage was six nonths. He asked what happened to children
after that period.

43. He al so requested details of study grants provided by the State to
children from di sadvant aged backgrounds and of the protection and assistance



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 8

whi ch shoul d, under article 10 of the Covenant, be accorded to the famly, and
particularly to famlies with handi capped or chronically ill children

44, M. SADI asked whether the standard of living of the general public and
the |l evel of protection of the famly, nothers and children in particular had
ri sen since Bulgaria had begun moving towards a market economy.

45, M. TEXIER said that he believed that an enployer in Bulgaria could

di sm ss a pregnant woman by obtaining the authorization of the Labour

I nspectorate. In his opinion, there should be no exceptions to the prohibition
on di sm ssing pregnant womnen.

46. Concerning the right to an adequate standard of living, it would be
interesting to know whether the inmpoverishnent of the Bul garian people, which
was, as the table on page 49 of the report showed, a matter of great concern
was still continuing and to what extent privatization was responsible for that
devel opnent.

47. In that connection, it was stated in paragraph 216 of the report that the
system of housing distribution was being replaced by a market-based system

VWhat neasures was the CGovernnment planning to take to ensure that the npst

vul nerabl e sectors of the population still had access to housing? He would like
to know how t he Governnent intended to reconcile privatization, on the one hand,
with the right to housing and adequate food, on the other.

48. M. GRISSA asked whether Bulgaria, |ike npbst countries in transition, had
street children, and if so, what neasures were being taken to deal with the
probl em

49. Par agraph 151 of the report stated that, since child |abour was prohibited
in Bulgaria, the question did not need any consi deration and paragraph 152
stated that the nunber of children enployed within their famlies, househol ds,
farms or stores owned by their parents could not be assessed. It would thus be
useful to have details of child labour. It was well known that, when the
economi c situation deteriorated, parents sonetines put their children to work as
a neans of boosting the famly's income.

50. M. RATTRAY asked what specific neasures were being taken by the
government to conply with its obligations under the Covenant, particularly with
regard to the right to housing and adequate food. |In that connection, it was
worrying to read in the report that State assistance to construction was now
simply synbolic (para. 216) and that the State subsidy for housing had all but
di sappeared (para. 223).

51. M. RIEDEL asked what specific measures were being taken to ensure that
the right to housing, adequate food and health could be exercised. In that
connection, the Bul garian Governnent had adm tted wi th conmendabl e frankness in
paragraph 36.1 of its witten replies that nmedical care was becom ng nmore and
nore inaccessi ble for the nost vul nerabl e groups, nmeaning the disabled, the
retired, the unenployed and people on |ow incones. The Governnment also admtted
i n paragraph 233 of the report that the physical and nental health of the

Bul gari an peopl e showed a nunber of unfavourable tendencies (a rise in the death
rate and infant nortality rate and lower |ife expectancy). Under article 12 of



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 9

the Covenant, States parties recognized every person's right to the enjoynent of
the hi ghest attainable standard of physical and nmental health.

52. Moreover, the alternative report by the Bul gari an Gender Research
Foundation stated that inplenentation of the health insurance systemand the
restructuring and privatization of medical institutions had been postponed to
July 2000 and that, in the neantime, health services would continue to
deteriorate and the shortage of medi ci nes and nedi cal equi pment woul d becone
wor se.

53. It would be interesting to know how the Governnent proposed to renedy
overcrowdi ng and the |ack of resources and staff in psychiatric institutions.

54, M. CEASU said that he would like to quote sone figures which deserved
consideration. According to the information provided in the witten replies,

t he proportion of households with an income bel ow the m ni num subsi stence | eve
had reached 54 per cent and the percentage with an incone bel ow the socia

m ni mum had risen 41 per cent in 1990 to 73 per cent in 1996. The ratio of the
i ncome of the richest 20 per cent to that of the poorest 20 per cent had been
3.5 in the period 1980-1992 and 5.8 in 1996. That neant that the majority of
the popul ati on was getting poorer while a small group was enjoying a
considerable rise in income. It would be interesting to try to find a coherent
expl anation for that phenomenon, which was comon in the countries in
transition, and to know al so whether there was a fair mechani smfor negotiating
and fixing the m ni mum wage.

55. Inits witten reply to question 27 of the list of issues, the Bulgarian
Governnment limted itself to stating that the draft acts concerning protection
of the rights of the child had not yet been adopted by the National Assenbly.
Was that because of the National Assenmbly had not yet begun consideration of the
draft acts, because the CGovernnent had w thdrawn the drafts or because they had
been rejected. Also, Bulgaria was introducing a new health insurance system

whi ch would enter into force on 1 January 2000. Retired people's nmedica
expenses woul d be paid by the State, but what would be the position of students?
Wul d they be given free health insurance or would there be a special systemfor
t hent?

56. Several paragraphs of the report were devoted to progranmes in the field
of health and nutrition, but nost of those programmes were ained only at
prof essi onal s, such as doctors or nurses. Wre there any health education
programes for the general public?

57. On the subject of housing, he found it difficult to understand the tables
given in the witten replies to question 33 of the |ist of issues. In
particular, he would Iike to know what was nmeant by the expression "housing
units put into use" and would wel conme clarification of the figures provided.

58. Ms. JI MENEZ BUTRAGUENO noted with concern that ol der workers suffered nore
from unenpl oynent and asked whether they were not the victins of age-rel ated
discrimnation, for exanple, in cases where enterprises preferred to recruit
young peopl e because they were cheaper. She had al so understood that the

Bul gari an Government intended to raise the age of retirement, which would make
the situation of older workers worse still. Paragraph 20.1 of the witten
replies mentioned a pre-retirenment unenpl oynment social pension: what was its




E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR 31
page 10

value in absolute terns and as a proportion of the m ni mum wage and what was the
age of eligibility?

59. The reply to question 28 of the list of issues on the scale of the
phenonenon of viol ence agai nst wonen and the nmethods used to conbat it was not
very detailed. It would be interesting to have nore information, both on the

scal e of the phenonenon and on the neasures taken

60. M. AHMED said that it was inportant to consider carefully the effects of
econom c policy on the exercise of economc, social and cultural rights. 1In
that connection, he cited information fromdifferent sources. According to the
UNDP Human Devel opnent report 1997, |arge sections of the Bul garian popul ation
were living bel ow the poverty line, however the latter was defined. The 1998
annual report of the Conmittee on the Elim nation of discrimnation against
Worren stated that the Conmittee was particularly struck by the huge proportion
of people living bel ow the poverty line in Bulgaria (sone 80 per cent, according
to the del egation). Another source (Eastern Europe, 1996) said that nore than
one-third of househol ds had been suffering frommalnutrition in 1995, even

t hough they spent 70 per cent of their income on food.

61. Concerning the right to housing, the UNDP Human Devel opnment report 1997
stated that, in 1992, alnost half of the population of Bulgaria was living in
poor housing conditions. Regarding health, one non-governnmental organization's
report said that Sofia's |largest maternity hospital was suffering serious staff
and nedi ci ne shortages. Under the old system nedical care, including maternity
care, had been free; now wonen had to pay a considerable sum in relation to the
average salary, for maternity care. To receive good care, it was necessary to
bri be doctors. Whereas, in the past, women had received their pay in full for
two years after giving birth, they now received it for only five nonths. A
femal e doctor in the association of University Wnmen said that the situation of
singl e mothers was worse still and that one-third of children were born outside
wedl ock. Al physical and mental health services had deteriorated and a | arge
nunber of hospitals and nmedical centres had been forced to close or cut

capacity.

62. In such circunstances, the basic question was whether the Bul garian
Government could find a mddle course, a bal ance, between pursuing econom c
reform on the one hand, and respecting econom c, social and cultural rights, on
the other. He would be grateful if the Bulgarian del egati on woul d pass on his
concerns to its Governnent, for it was essential that the latter should consider
t he consequences of restructuring on human rights.

63. M. WMR said that he would |ike nore detail about the housing situation
in Bulgaria. |In particular, he would |ike to know what directions Governnment
policy was taking in response to the new economc situation, with particular
regard to the fact that the preceding political systemhad carried out a socia
housi ng poli cy.

64. M . DRAGANQV (Bul garia) said that his delegation would reply in detail at
the next neeting to all of the questions asked and that the secretariat would be
provi ded with a docunment on the integration programmes for Roma carried out in
Bul garia. Noting that nost of the questions asked were of a social, politica
and even phil osophical nature, he enphasized that ensuring econom c, social and
cultural rights was expensive and was inevitably subject to budgetary



E/ C. 12/ 1999/ SR. 31
Page 11

constraints. However, the Bulgarian Governnent, or rather the State or the
country as a whole, for not everything was the responsibility of the Governnent,
was conmitted to reconciling reforms with rights. 1In the health sphere, the
transition fromcentralized State systemto private insurance could not happen
overni ght and was an expensive process. Assistance fromthe internationa
financial institutions would be welcone. Health care would remain free unti

the private insurance system had entered into force. The quality of care was
not al ways what it should be, but the authorities were attenpting to inprove the
situation by nmeans of programmes, with assistance fromcharitable associations,
non- gover nment al organi zati ons and i nternational financial institutions. The
housi ng situati on was changing as well and it was interesting to note that the
nunber of homeowners in Bulgaria was relatively high

65. Ms. SREDKOVA (Bul garia) said that she took issue with some of the
information cited by nenbers of the Cormittee on the basis of non-governnenta
organi zation reports. She was not famliar with the "alternative" report

menti oned by M. Riedel and others, and had no i dea on what basis it had been
drawn up or what it contained. She could certainly study it before the next
meeti ng, but was not sure that that was the correct way in which to proceed.

what ever the case, she strongly refuted the claimthat nothers had fornmerly been
paid in full for two years after giving birth, whereas now they were paid only
for five months. Bulgarian women had never been paid in full for two years
after giving birth, and neither indeed had wonen in other European countries.
Under the Bul garian Labour Code, the total length of maternity | eave granted to
wonen depended on how many children they had al ready: they received 120 days
for the first child and 150 for the second. Pre-natal |eave represented 45 of
the total 120 days. Wonmen could extend their maternity |eave by taking
child-rearing leave until the child was two years old; during that time, they
were entitled to a social security benefit equal in value to the m ni num wage.
Hence, the situation of wonen had clearly not become worse in terns of maternity
and child-rearing allowances. Mdreover, while, until 1992, only worki ng wonen
had been entitled to the maternity all owance, fromthat year onwards, wormen wth
a different status, such as the self-enployed, had al so been able to claimit.

66. M. RIEDEL said he had thought that the Bul garian del egation was fam|liar
with the alternative report produced by the non-governnental organization and,
since that was not the case, he did not expect the Bul garian del egation to give
detailed replies to all of the points raised. However, such reports were usefu
because of the information they provided. The Comrittee referred to themnnot in
order to accuse the country's authorities, but in order to give constructive
fodder to the dialogue with the del egations.

The neeting rose at 5.55 p.m




